MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, HELD IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE HARBOR DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AT 925 HARBOR PLAZA, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ON MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2006, AT 1 P.M.

Present:

Commissioners:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Topsy-Elvord

Absent:

Hankla

Also present:

S. B.	Rubin	Managing Director
T.	Teofilo	Managing Director
G. T.	Hein	Executive Officer to the Board
D. A.	Thiessen	Chief Harbor Engineer
T.K.	Whitesell	Director of Administration
H. C.	Morris	Director of Communications
M. J.	Slavin	Chief Financial Officer
C. L.	Thomsen	Office Automation Analyst
R.	Rich	Director of Maintenance
R. G.	Kanter	Director of Planning
K. J.	McDermott	Director of Properties
C.	Perrone	Director of Security
D.B.	Snyder	Director of Trade & Maritime Services
T. A.	Poe	Assistant Director of Government Affairs
D. T.	Holzhaus	Principal Deputy City Attorney

PRESIDENT TOPSY-ELVORD PRESIDED AS CHAIRPERSON.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

Upon motion by Commissioner Walter, seconded by Commissioner Cordero and unanimously carried, the minutes of the regular meeting of March 6, 2006, were declared read and approved as read.

PUBLIC COMMENTS.

Mr. Roger Holman, past President of the Coolidge Triangle Homeowners Association, addressed the Board and stated he felt the Strategic Plan lacked measurable goals and accountability.

Commissioner Cordero thanked Mr. Holman for his comments.

Commissioner Cordero suggested staff attend one of the Coolidge Triangle Homeowners meetings to dialog with the members.

Ms. Morris stated the Port will be hosting its first Harbor Arbor Day on April 29, 2006, out at Coolidge Park and representatives from each division will be available for questions and interaction.

Mr. Teofilo stated the Strategic Plan was put together in a classic fashion with metrics and measurable goals and what was released was the Executive Summary of the Strategic Plan. He stated that the metrics and measurements are being devised at the division level and this will be part of the extended plan that will be used throughout the next 10 years. Additionally, Mr. Teofilo stated this information will be made available to the public.

CONSENT CALENDAR - ITEMS NOS. 1-5.

Item No. 1 was removed from Consent Calendar for discussion.

2. LEVEL I HARBOR DEVELOPMENT PERMITS - RECEIVED AND FILED.

Communication from Robert Kanter, Director of Planning, dated March 8, 2006, requesting that the following Level I Harbor Development Permits be approved:

HDP	#05-121	SSA Terminals – Crane Relocation
HDP	#05-125	Southern California Edison – Annual Maintenance and Repair
HDP	#05-126	Cooper/T. Smith Stevedoring Co., Inc Roof Repairs
HDP	#05-127	Port of Long Beach – Jackson Avenue Street Improvements
HDP	#05-128	Mitsubishi Cement Corp. – Fence Installation
HDP	#05-129	Shell Pipeline Co Pipeline Repair
HDP	#05-130	International Transit Service - Crane Off-Loading
EMA	#05-131	Tidelands Oil Production Co. – Emergency Pipeline Repair
HDP	#05-132	California United Terminals – CUT Security Guard House Installation
HDP	#05-133	Port of Long Beach – Traffic Signal Installation
HDP	#06-001	Tidelands Oil Production Co. – Fence Installation

HDP	#06-003	Port of Long Beach – Trench Drain Installation
EMA	#06-004	Tidelands Oil Production Co. – Emergency Pipeline Repair
HDP	#06-005	Port of Long Beach – Fence and Gate Installation
HDP	#06-006	Port of Long Beach – 2000-Gallon Underground Tank Removal
HDP	#06-011	Port of Long Beach – Security Fence Installation
HDP	#06-013	Long Beach Container Terminal – Grounding Rod Installation
EMA	#06-014	Port of Long Beach – Emergency Removal of Underwater Objects

was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT FOR THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2006 – RECEIVED AND FILED.

Communication from Michael J. Slavin, Chief Financial Officer, dated March 2, 2006, transmitting financial statements for the Long Beach Harbor Department for the month of January 2006, was presented to the Board. The financial statements were approved by the Executive Director.

4. HARBOR REVENUE FUND – APPROVAL OF FUND TRANSFER JOURNALS AND AUTHORIZATION OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS.

Communication from Michael J. Slavin, Chief Financial Officer, dated March 8, 2006, submitting the following Fund Transfer Journals received from the Department of Financial Management:

AMOUNT	DESCRIPTION	
103,614.92	Employee Benefits and Insurance Funds – Worker's Compensation for March 2006	
123,294.92	Employee Benefits Fund – Pension obligation bonds for March 2006	
175,515.33	General Fund –transfer of the March 2006 estimated City general administration costs	

9,811.75	General Fund – adjustment for additional cost of indirect overhead for prior year – March 2006
1,460,963.00	Fire Department – Fire Boats for February & March 2006 Fire Department – Fire Stations for February & March 2006
16,614.50	Fire Department – Vessel patrol for February & March 2006
12,239.00	Information Services Bureau – data processing operations and maintenance for January 2006
3,460.02	Reprographics for February 2006
11,058.33	Technical Systems – Financial information system for March 2006
1,744.00	Police Department – Security services for LNG hearings on November 14, 15, 30, and December 1, 2005
9,000.00	City Manager's Department – participants in the Leadership Academy for the Supervisor's Program
76,445.00	City Manager's Department – annual cost for one management assistant.

was presented to the Board. The Fund Transfer Journals were approved by the Executive Director.

5. JANICE CABELLO – APPOINTMENT.

Communication from Toni K. Whitesell, Director of Administration, dated March 7, 2006, requesting approval of the appointment of Janice Cabello to the position of Clerk Typist II-NC at Range/Step M17, effective March 14, 2006, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

Without objection the communications were received and filed and Items Nos. 2-5 were approved by unanimous consent. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

None

ABSENT:

Hankla

1. SPECIFICATION NO. HD-S2281 - APPROVED AND NOTICE INVITING BIDS AUTHORIZED - PIER T MARINE TERMINAL CONTAINER YARD EXPANSION.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated March 8, 2006, submitting Specification No. HD-S2281 for Phase 3 of the Container Yard Expansion at the Pier T Marine Terminal and requesting authority to advertise for bids for said work, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

In response to a request by Commissioner Hancock, Mr. Thiessen reviewed the improvements.

In response to a question by Commissioner Hancock, Ms. McDermott stated the Preferential Assignment Agreement provides that upon completion of construction, the Phase III area will be added to the premises at the then applicable rate and the cost of those improvements will be taken into account in the compensation renegotiation that is scheduled for 2007.

Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Walter that the communication be received and filed, that Specification No. HD-S2281 be approved, and that the Executive Director be authorized to advertise for bids therefore. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

u

None

ABSENT:

Hankla

NEW BUSINESS.

Commissioner Hancock presented, from the Long Beach Yacht Clue, a framed photograph of the sponsored boat from the Congressional Cup Race in appreciation of the Port sponsorship.

President Topsy-Elvord read a Letter of Appreciation from the Fire Department thanking the Port for the sponsorship for their 34th Annual Meritorious Luncheon. She stated the luncheon honors heroic members of the community and Long Beach firefighters who have gone beyond the call of duty.

Commissioner Walter stated he had attended the Customer Orientation and that it was exceptionally well done. He stated that there was a lot of very important information covered and he suggested there be follow-up with the customers that attended.

Commissioner Walter commended the Communications staff on all of the information they are disseminating regarding the questions pertaining to Dubai.

Commissioner Cordero stated he had attended the Long Beach Reads One Book Event, which the Port was the title sponsor. He stated he felt this is an excellent

example of the good things that are being done in expanding our involvement and sponsorships of Long Beach community events.

Commissioner Cordero thanked the staff who attended the event on a volunteer basis.

Commissioner Hancock stated he had attended the City Council meeting last week where the City presented a proclamation to the Library Foundation relating to Long Beach Reads One Book.

Ms. Morris stated she would like to thank Mr. Steven Macias for the coordination of the Long Beach Reads One Book program and to Ms. Heather Tomley and the Planning staff for their display at the event and in answering questions from the community.

Additionally, she recognized the Survey staff that brought out the survey boat. She stated they had an incredible display showing how the survey division assisted with the greeting of the two Queens.

President Topsy-Elvord thanked Mr. Felix Sanchez, Press Telegram, on his article regarding the Strategic Plan for the Port of Long Beach. She thanked the Commissioners, staff, and the Press Telegram for their exposure of the Plan.

CLOSED SESSION.

At 2:15 p.m., President Topsy-Elvord recessed the Board meeting to hold a closed session:

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Closed session pursuant to Section 54956.9(c) of the Government Code concerning consideration of initiation of litigation (one case).

At 2:45 p.m., the meeting was again called to order by President Topsy-Elvord.

ADJOURNED.

At 2:46 p.m., Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Cordero that the meeting be adjourned sine die. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

None

ABSENT:

Hanklà

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, HELD IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE HARBOR DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AT 925 HARBOR PLAZA, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ON MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2006, AT 1 P.M.

Present:

Commissioners:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord

Absent:

None

Also present:

R. D.	Steinke	Executive Director
S.B.	Rubin	Managing Director
T.	Teofilo	Managing Director
G. T.	Hein	Executive Officer to the Board
D.	Sereno	Deputy Chief Harbor Engineer
T. K.	Whitesell	Director of Administration
H. C.	Morris	Director of Communications
M. J.	Slavin	Chief Financial Officer
D. L.	Albrecht	Director of Information Management
R.	Rich	Director of Maintenance
R.G.	Kanter	Director of Planning
K. J.	McDermott	Director of Properties
C.	Perrone	Director of Security
D.B.	Snyder	Director of Trade & Maritime Services
T. A.	Poe	Assistant Director of Government Affairs
D. T.	Holzhaus	Principal Deputy City Attorney

PRESIDENT TOPSY-ELVORD PRESIDED AS CHAIRPERSON.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

Upon motion by Commissioner Walter, seconded by Commissioner Hankla and unanimously carried, the minutes of the regular meeting of March 13, 2006, were declared read and approved as read.

PUBLIC COMMENTS.

There was no one present to address the Board.

CONSENT CALENDAR - ITEMS NOS. 1-5.

Item No. 4 was removed from Consent Calendar for discussion.

1. FOREIGN TRADE ZONE NO. 50 ANNUAL REPORT FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2004 - 2005.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated March 13, 2006, recommending approval of the Annual Report of Foreign Trade Zone No. 50 for the federal fiscal year 2004-2005, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

2. SPECIFICATION NO. HD-S2232 - APPROVED AND NOTICE INVITING BIDS AUTHORIZED – PORT INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM – CITY SITES.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, dated March 15, 2006, submitting Specification No. HD-S2232 for Port Incident Management System-City Sites and requesting authority to advertise for bids for said work, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

3. CERTIFIED CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC. - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE CONTRACT FOR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ABATEMENT SERVICES - DOCUMENT NO. HD-7030.

Communication from Robert Kanter, Director of Planning, dated March 13, 2006, recommending authorization of a Contract with Certified Contracting Services, Inc., for hazardous materials abatement services throughout the Harbor District, in the amount of \$250,000, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

5. EWO NO. 4400 – SUPPLEMENT NO. 6 – FUNDING FOR HARBOR ARBOR DAY IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE GREEN PORT PROGRAM – APPROVED.

Communication from Carl A. Kemp, Director of Community and Government Affairs, dated March 9, 2006, requesting approval of EWO No. 4400, Supplement No. 6, for funding of the Harbor Arbor Day in association with the Green Port Program, in the amount of \$400,000, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Walter moved, seconded by Commissioner Cordero that the communications be received and filed and that Items Nos. 1-3, and 5 be approved as recommended. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

None

ABSENT:

None

RAFAEL GONZALEZ – APPOINTMENT.

Communication from Toni K. Whitesell, Director of Administration, dated March 15, 2006, requesting approval of the appointment of Rafael Gonzalez to the position of Administrative Intern-NC at Range/Step H36, effective March 21, 2006, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Walter commented that Mr. Gonzalez had been one of his students at California State University Long Beach and the University has a lot of students interested in majoring in International Business and he hopes there will be other opportunities for students.

Mr. Gonzalez addressed the Board and stated he felt his appointment would provide a good learning experience for him in his career.

Commissioner Walter moved, seconded by Commissioner Cordero that the communication be received and filed and that Rafael Gonzalez be appointed to the position of Administrative Intern-NC. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

None

ABSENT:

None

REGULAR AGENDA.

6. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ACTING THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE FIRST AMENDMENT TO RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMIT FOR MONITORING WELLS ON PIER T - DOCUMENT NO. HD-6790A - RESOLUTION NO. HD-2295 - ADOPTED.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated March 14, 2006, recommending authorization of the First Amendment to Right of Entry Permit with the United States of America acting through the Department of the Navy for monitoring wells MW-16-1, MW-16-2, and MW-16-3, located on Pier T, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing resolution therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Walter moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed and that the resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMIT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ACTING THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read and adopted as read. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:

Commrs:

Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord

NOES:

None

ABSENT:

None

NEW BUSINESS.

Mr. Snyder presented Green Flags to environmentally friendly fleet operations, individual vessels, and carriers that voluntarily reduced their speeds in 2005 to curb air pollution. The following were awarded Green Flags; Orient Overseas Container Line (OOCL), "K" Line, USS Vessel Management, BP Shipping, SeaRiver Maritime, Hyundai Merchant Marine, China Ocean Shipping Co. (COSCO), Nippon Yusen Kaisha (NYK), China Shipping Container Line, Mitsui OKS Lines, Matson Navigation, Hanjin Shipping, and Alaska Tanker.

President Topsy-Elvord congratulated everyone and stated that many of them have observed the speed limits voluntarily, even without the incentives.

Mr. Snyder stated this is the second year for the Pulse of the Port's breakfast which details the peak season forecast for the benefit of importers, exporters, and carriers using the Port. He stated the breakfast will be held at the Long Beach Hilton Hotel on Tuesday, March 28, 2006.

President Topsy-Elvord commended the Trade and Maritime and Communications Divisions on the excellent presentation of the Green Flag recognition.

Commissioner Walter gave a report on his recent trip to Washington, DC. He stated he had discussed with Mr. Del Smith, our Washington advocate, what was coming in regards to bills and legislation. Additionally, he and Mr. Hein had met with Congressman Rohrabacher and gave him an update on PierPass, the Vessel Speed Reduction Program, our Green Port progress, the Locomotion Replacement Project, and the truck fleet modernization.

Commissioner Walter stated he attended, at the request of Congressman Rohrabacher, the boat tour for the U.S. Ambassador of the State of Qatar, and he stated the Ambassador is interested in having his country work more closely with the Port.

In response to a question by Commissioner Cordero, Dr. Kanter stated his staff is working on the Green Port annual report for last year and he anticipates the report being presented to the Board in four to six weeks.

Commissioner Cordero stated he would like updates on alternative fuels that are being used by the industries and on the on-going Yard Hostler pilot program with Long Beach Container Terminal.

Dr. Kanter stated he would provide an updated summary of the investigation into alternative fuels. Additionally, he stated there has been some difficulty in getting the fueling facility reviewed and permitted by the Long Beach Fire Department in part due to it being a temporary facility.

Mr. Steinke stated he had met with Chief Ellis, Long Beach Fire Department, and because the fact that the facility was considered temporary some of the permitting requirements were things they were not familiar with and were a bit hesitant to permit. Additionally, Mr. Steinke also stated it is his understanding that these concerns were resolved.

Dr. Kanter stated, after speaking with Mr. Steinke, he felt the Fire Department is making a good attempt to move this process along.

Commissioner Cordero suggested developing a plan to host a Green Port Conference in which the purpose would be to attract members of the industry and we could invite people not only throughout the nation but internationally as well.

Mr. Steinke stated that was an excellent suggestion and perhaps we could combine the Conference with our next Green Port Open House to get the industry more engaged.

Dr. Kanter stated he would get together with the Communications Division in regard to the request.

Dr. Walter stated he was an invited guest at the California Congressional Delegation luncheon and at the luncheon he had the opportunity to meet with many legislators, such as Congresswoman Mary Bono, Congressman Ken Calvert, Congressman Dan Lungren, Congressman Ed Royce, and Congressman Rohrabacher.

ADJOURN IN MEMORY OF BILL BERDANIS.

At 2:15 p.m., Commissioner Walter moved, seconded by Commissioner Cordero that the meeting be adjourned sine die in memory of Bill Berdanis. Bill worked in Engineering as a Professional Land Surveyor and he retired from the City in December 2005 after 25 years of service. He is survived by his wife, Margo. Carried by the following vote:

AYES: Commrs: Walter, Hancock, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord NOES: " None

ABSENT: " None

CITY OF LONG BEACH DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MARINE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES February 16, 2006

I. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission was called to order by Harry Saltzgaver, Vice President, at 9:02 a.m., at the El Dorado Park West Senior Center Bridge Room. Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine, took roll call and confirmed a quorum.

Present: Harry Saltzgaver, Vice President

Bea Antenore Simon George Drew Satariano

Absent: Chris Kozaites, President (excused)

Brett Waterfield (late)

Staff: Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine

Thomas Shippey, Manager, Maintenance Operations Bureau Dennis Eschen, Manager, Planning and Development Bureau Chrissy Marshall, Manager, Community Recreation Programs Janet Day-Anselmo, Manager, Business Operations Bureau

William Greco, Acting Chief Ranger

Alvin Bernstein, Superintendent, Community Enrichment Programs Bureau

Robin Black, Executive Assistant to the Director

Guests: Mike Donelon

Bob McKittrick, Little League Baseball Lisa Duarte, Los Altos Bobby Sox Yvette Ramos, Los Altos Bobby Sox

Kym Rohlf, Bobby Sox National Headquarters Jim Mercurio, Long Beach Girls Fastpitch

Patrick McKean, Lakewood Village Little League

Trey Scharlin, Long Beach Soccer Club

Fernando Gonzalez, Cesar Chavez Youth Soccer Steve Hoy, Los Altos Youth Baseball and Softball

Kristen Autry, Save LBC Skyline

David Sundstrom Johnny Stenson Michael Gatz

It was moved by Commissioner Antenore and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to excuse the absence of President Kozaites. The motion carried unanimously.

Vice President Saltzgaver welcomed Albert Guerra, as a new Parks and Recreation Commissioner.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – JANUARY 19, 2006

It was moved by Commissioner Antenore and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to approve the January 19, 2006 Parks and Recreation Commission minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

III. SAMMY AWARD PRESENTATION - DAVID ASHMAN

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that the Sammy Award has been deferred to the March 16, 2006 Commission meeting.

IV. EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH PRESENTATION FOR FEBRUARY

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that Commissioner Satariano would announce the Employee of the Month for February.

Commissioner Satariano announced Andrea Lain as Field Operations Employee of the Month for February.

Ms. Terri Eggers, as her supervisor, spoke about Ms. Lain.

V. <u>COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS</u>

#06-0201

PERSONAL SERVICES/INSTRUCTION AGREEMENTS-MONTHLY APPROVAL

It was moved by Commissioner Antenore and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to authorize the Community Recreation Services Bureau Manager or his or her management designee to execute the Personal Services and Instruction Agreements and amend Attachment "A" of the agreements as needed. The motion carried unanimously.

#06-0202

RECOMMENDATION TO NAME THE SOUTH BASEBALL FIELD AT STEARNS CHAMPIONS PARK AS "TOM BUCKLE FIELD"

Mr. Hester stated that this item was referred to the Parks and Recreation Commission by the City Council. Mr. Buckle was a 30-year volunteer with the little league organization and he passed away last year. This request was forwarded by the 4th District Council office. Mr. Hester stated that this item was

heard by the City Council's Housing and Neighborhoods Committee on February 14, 2006, and would go back to the City Council on February 21, 2006. If the Parks and Recreation Commission approve this request, the little league would dedicate the field at their opening on March 4, 2006.

It was moved by Commissioner Satariano and seconded by Commissioner George to recommend to the Housing and Neighborhoods Committee and the full City Council that the south baseball field at Stearns Champions Park be named "Tom Buckle Field." The motion carried unanimously.

#06-0203

MEMORIAL BENCH FOR KENNETH A. AYSTER

Mr. Hester stated that this is a request similar to other requests for memorial benches, and this is to request a bench at El Dorado Regional Park with a plaque.

It was moved by Commissioner Antenore and seconded by Commissioner Guerra to approve the placement and installation of the memorial bench for Mr. Kenneth A. Ayster. The motion carried unanimously.

#06-0204

EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TENNIS CLASSES PERMIT NO. 28246

Mr. Hester stated that the City has an agreement for the operation of the tennis centers at Billie Jean King and El Dorado with Cathy Jacobson Guzy. When the City last reviewed the agreement, they asked that Ms. Jacobson Guzy take on the operation of all tennis programs throughout the city, which she agreed to. It appears that the calculations that were done to establish that base rate were incorrect, in the City's favor. Therefore, Ms. Jacobson Guzy has asked for some consideration as a result of the error. The Department feels comfortable with this request. Staff has not had sufficient time to research and verify all the numbers, so staff is requesting that Ms. Jacobson Guzy's March payment be deferred until staff can come back, hopefully at the March meeting, with a recommendation.

It was moved by Commissioner George and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to authorize the execution of a First Amendment to Contract Tennis Classes Permit No. 28246 between the City of Long Beach and Cathy Jacobson Guzy, an individual doing business as First Serve, suspending the payment of the March 2006 permit fee. The motion carried unanimously.

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that the Sports Park item would be taken next.

X. NEW BUSINESS

A. LONG BEACH SPORTS PARK AND YOUTH GOLF LEARNING CENTER – SITE PLAN 3A AND 3B

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that staff received a message last night from Mr. Sundstrom, who is here today, requesting that the item be pulled from the agenda. He said that the request is in light of a community meeting, which has been scheduled for February 25, 2006. Because they received this request last night and because that public meeting is an informational meeting only, it is his feeling that they need to go ahead with the agenda item today simply because they have several people who are here to hear the presentation. The other mitigating factor is that they have the staff here ready to make that presentation. If it is acceptable to the other Commissioners, they will go forward with this presentation. The Commissioners agreed to go forward with the item.

Vice President Saltzgaver told Mr. Sundstrom that he felt compelled to allow him to address the Commission before they start the presentation, with the understanding that they are moving forth. There will be public comment after the presentation, because it is an agenda item, and Mr. Sundstrom will have a chance to speak again at that time.

Mr. David Sundstrom said, "I didn't plan to speak today but I can share some of my concerns about today's procedure. First of all, I understand that the action we are taking today in this room is really advisory. I just wanted to go on record regarding the process; I think it has been flawed and there are some misrepresentations on the record regarding the conditional approval by the Planning Commission for the Sports Park design. Back on October 20, I did address the Planning Commission, and as a result of that discussion, they requested staff to work with the community to try and come up with a modified design of the project. The only opportunity we have had to formally discuss it with City staff was at a meeting on December 14, at Veterans Park. That meeting was scheduled for 90 minutes and the City's presentation took all but the last 10 minutes of the scheduled 90 minutes. There was no record recorded of that meeting, no stenographer, there was no audio-visual team from the City, and I don't think that the anecdotal advice that was given after the meeting was a proper exchange between the City and the community. As a partial make-up call, there is a much longer meeting that Mr. Saltzgaver already pointed out, scheduled for February 25, 2006. It was my hope that during that meeting there would be more of a give and take between City representatives Amy Bodek from Planning (sic), Dennis Eschen, and Larry Ryan from the architectural firm. If we were to simply carry over any kind of approval by this body until your next regularly scheduled meeting, which would be in the middle of March, it would still give staff two to three weeks to prepare for their ultimate presentation to City Council, which I understand is April 4, 2006."

Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting February 16, 2006 Page 5

Vice President Saltzgaver thanked Mr. Sundstrom for his comment. He requested the staff presentation.

Mr. Hester said that he would ask Dennis Eschen to make the presentation on behalf of staff and also to explain to the Commission what staff has been doing since the last time the Commission has heard this. He reminded the Commission that they already approved the project and the location previously. The only reason they are coming back to the Commission is the result of a request from the Planning Commission to look at alternatives. "Staff has held meetings and there was a community meeting and individual meetings held with representatives from the environmental community. There are some options that will be shared by Mr. Eschen today that represent the best efforts so far to address some of the environmental concerns. I think it needs to be made clear that the item before the Commission today is not to begin discussion on whether this is a project or not, it is looking at what has been done in the interim to try to address some of these environmental issues that have been brought forth. That needs to be clear from your standpoint. You are not being asked to re-approve the project itself, you are looking at some of the alternatives. The recommendations from staff to the Commission today were to send forth the various options to the City Council for their consideration on April 4, 2006."

Mr. Hester said that staff feels that they have worked in good faith with the environmental community on some of these options. "I can tell you that these changes are fairly significant from the standpoint of the overall site plan and with the challenges of the site plan, and I think the architect will talk a little bit about some of those. Some of those are still being refined. The construction grading and those types of things, which are issues, still protect the integrity of what the project was all about. It is still working itself through. Conceptually, the Commission still has the opportunity to address those options, one of which is the original plan. There are a couple of options available. The meeting on February 25, 2006, is also an information meeting to share with the community the various options and not to redesign. There was a misunderstanding that came from the Planning Commission's direction that we would look to redesign. That is not the purpose of that meeting. The meeting on February 25, 2006, does allow for the potential refining of some of the options that you will be looking at today, before it goes to City Council. Staff's feeling right now is that we will probably take the original plan along with a couple of the options to the City Council on April 4, 2006. We can come back if you would like, at the March Commission meeting, to further provide you with information on any changes or corrections that result from the community meeting for the design of the facility, especially as it relates to the some of the grading. calculations on some of the grading as a result of making some of these changes are fairly significant, so it will be important that we make this work."

Mr. Hester said, "If you are comfortable with that, I will ask Mr. Eschen to take the lead and the architect is also here to answer questions that may come up, and I know that there are some members of the public here who would like to comment."

Vice President Saltzgaver said that he had one clarification he would need to make regarding the Planning Commission's actual legal action, which was certification of the Environmental Impact Report (EIR). So the EIR has been certified by the Planning Commission. Vice President Saltzgaver inquired about the direction the Commission should take to cover the environmental component.

Mr. Mike Mais, from the City Attorney's office, said that Vice President Saltzgaver was correct, that at the Planning Commission meeting back in October they did certify the EIR as being fully adequate. There were a number of members of the community that attended the meeting that voiced some concerns as to certain design elements of the project and actually some of them objected to the project itself. So the condition of project approval was that the Planning Commission directed staff to try and work with members of the community to see if they could meet some of their concerns. It wasn't really to add an environmental component, which was already there. It was just to try and meet with the community and see what they could work out, a compromise basically.

Mr. Dennis Eschen stated that the project has enough history that you could fill a book with, but he won't take you all the way back through the last 20 years. Last February, the Commission reviewed the EIR and in July, the Commission took action to approve the site plan, which is on a perspective drawing behind you. This includes six softball/baseball fields, four soccer/football fields, two indoor soccer/multipurpose arena areas, a parking lot, and approximately 10 acres for a golf learning center. That was the plan that went to the Planning Commission and they certified the EIR in October. The Planning Commission action also included a recommendation on changing the zoning and changing the general plan to approve the land use of the site, which was formerly institutional and industrial, to approve it as a park use. The Planning Commission asked staff to see if there were ways that we could compromise with the concerns raised by the community.

Mr. Eschen said, "Staff did work with the consultants to come up with a number of alternatives and agreed to take those to the community in December. We had one alternative at that time, which we are now listing as option 3A. After the feedback from the meeting, we came up with another alternative, which we are going to call 3B. Basically, there was a long list of concerns and the main concerns and objections were a loss of an opportunity for restorable wetlands, wetlands having a value environmentally and being very critically endangered because there is a significant reduction of wetlands in the region. Second, was an opportunity to provide and restore native habitat. Particularly in the west side of the city, there is very little contact with nature, and a native habitat was something that was desperately needed by the community. Third, the west side

of the city lacks adequate park space and accessible park space and this, being a special use and active recreational project, didn't meet a lot of community needs for a free, passive open space. Finally, the existing land flow of the site creates the high place of Long Beach, not officially named but for purposes of communication called Exxon Hill, that provides a panoramic overlook of the downtown and shoreline, and that was the value that needs to be preserved. Staff has taken those four items of the community's input from the Planning Commission meeting and tried to create alternatives. Both options that we are presenting today have substantial concessions. First of all, we have eliminated the golf learning center. We feel there are possibly other locations in town and the programming and overall design concept for the golf learning center was much less evolved than the rest of the sports park concept, and funding was also less evolved and problematic. It was also a much smaller facility, the space that was being allocated to it was not essential and it could probably be relocated to another portion of the city. Whereas the combination of fields and sports park needs a great deal of room, and staff feels that there is no other location in the city where that could be accommodated. Both of the options provide wetland areas, native habitat areas, passive recreational space, all in a total of about 12 acres with a panoramic overview. I'll now show you what the alternatives are."

Mr. Eschen presented the original plan and said, "This is basically looking from the southwest corner looking northeast. This is the Sunnyside Cemetery, if you would be hovering over it in a helicopter and looking northward. The soccer fields are in the lower elevation area next to California Avenue. This is California Avenue, Spring Street, and then Orange Avenue. The golf learning center was in the high location, as you can see on the topography. Actually, I have a version here without the trees on it so you can see the topography a lot better. This is the golf learning center, which included a community building, as well as a driving range and putting areas. These two cone things are the arena areas or the speed soccer areas; this is a batting cage area. There is a skate park located behind the batting cages and six softball fields. So that is the already approved plan."

Mr. Eschen said that at the December meeting, we took to the community this plan, Option 3A, which we evolved out of the eight other site plans. Basically, the parking lot and everything north of the parking lot does not change in this plan. The golf learning center area is basically replaced by the soccer fields. Where the soccer fields were in the original plan is replaced by the wetlands. Outside of the soccer fields, next to Orange Avenue, is a passive park area that will be landscaped with native habitat, accessible from the parking lot. It is all free access.

Mr. Eschen said, "Option 3B basically keeps the site plan more as it was in the original plan. The golf learning center is removed with passive park and native habitat area. The Exxon Hill overlook area is basically retained very close to its existing location, although there has to be some grading to get downhill to the

wetland area. The ridge would actually move somewhat to the east area. The soccer fields are back to the original location along California Avenue, but they are raised to California Avenue elevation instead of being down in the flood plain. The loss of one soccer field, we feel, would be made up for in total playing days by the fact that these would have an artificial surface and they won't be flooded, so there won't be as many down days for maintenance as you would have in a natural turf field. We feel that the three fields essentially would function very close to the same level of total playing days as the four fields that you would have before."

Mr. Eschen turned it over to Mr. Larry Ryan for any questions.

Vice President Saltzgaver asked for Mr. Ryan to explain just a little bit about the wetland area and the requirements that it needed to meet in terms of flood retention.

Mr. Ryan responded, "I will attempt to do that. One of the challenges we have on the site is that there is a large storm drain infrastructure from Los Angeles County that actually outlets into our basin. It is in approximately this area. During the normal course of time it likely doesn't see water. Let me back up. This area that we are showing in blue is representative of where the water would be during storm events. This isn't to imply that this is a standing body of water or that this is a wetlands and an appreciable water body year-round. It is subject to when there are periods of storm activity. We will be getting nuisance water and we want to handle that in a real proactive way so it doesn't become a main problem on the site. We also have the opportunity to cleanse that water as it comes out of this outlet through a riparian corridor wetland environment. I don't want to be misrepresenting this so that if someone saw this exhibit with a big blue area and in years to come, should this be built, would they say, 'Where is my lake?' It is not envisioned as that type of activity. Now, when that outlet is serving its function and handling the storms in the northwest part of the region here, we have an approximate 96-inch pipe. There are several outlets that come together, that are dumping water out, and we need to retain 36 feet of water within our area here on either configuration. In doing that, there is a visible challenge from a design standpoint because that is very important, and so we need to evaluate the options. How do we design with that potential inevitable event and yet not have this look like an Army Corps of Engineers project the other nine out of ten years? What we have done is we have used that outlet structure in both alternatives and combined that with an on-site site drainage system that will cause a bio-swale that feeds into that. What that allows us to do is to pick up all the nuisance drainage water from the ball field area, actually from the parking lot as well, and run it into the same riparian corridor serving to cleanse the water, take out the contaminants and doing it in a very naturalized manner. All of that integrates down into this area and would then connect to the outlet structure and into the adjacent river. That is kind of a general overview."

Vice President Saltzgaver thanked Mr. Ryan. He then asked if the Commission had any questions before turning to the public for comments.

Mr. Hester thanked Mr. Ryan. "This was a lot of hard work trying to come up with the two plans that you have here. Also, the City has taken a step forward by giving up a facility, the golf learning center, of which there are golf courses on the east side. The whole philosophy of this was to try and locate a teaching center for kids and youth in the central part of our city or the west side, to be able to serve that particular purpose. We are giving that up and we are going to try to find another location. The other thing was that we wanted to be true to the overall concept of the facility when it was decided to move this facility from El Dorado, and we are giving up one of our soccer fields. You have some soccer people here who will tell you that there is a need for many more soccer fields than less soccer fields. The positive is that the original plan did put the fields originally in a flood basin area, so they were subject to flooding during high storm times, which would take them out of play. Plus, they were regular turf, which also would also take them out of play and would affect the amount of usage. We hope with the new artificial turf and the new things they are doing with that, the fact is that we have this facility that will be wet and artificial turf will actually allow us to maximize the use. But still I think they are large enough that they can be subdivided into smaller fields, so there is a lot of flexibility. The parking, which is kind of simple, in one of the plans works better by having the soccer field a little closer. But again, we are giving that up also. The plan will probably be a better plan. We did still protect the integrity of the softball and baseball area, which was critical. It allows us to have arena soccer or roller hockey, basketball, and some of those type of events in that particular complex also. The other thing I think would be important that needs to be gotten out there, even though this is being geared toward adults, this facility is open to the public during the day up until 4:30 or 5:00 p.m. Some people have said that this is a fenced off facility, that no one can use it; it is not public, etc. During the day this facility is open to the public; the sports part of it and of course the natural area, which would be handled separately. So it is going to be used. Also, it allows for a lot of our youth leagues to be able to play some of their big tournaments and events in a facility that we think is first class. There are some other facilities like this in Southern California that a lot of our groups travel a long distance to be able to play on. We want them to be able to stay here and we want them to bring their tournaments to Long Beach. That is part of the design from the athletic side. On the passive side, the plan addresses and is true to the concept of what this whole project was supposed to be 20 years ago. There are people in this room that were involved on that task force that made this decision. I think it is trying to be true to that and at the same time taking a look at the passive piece of this. I consider this, there are a lot of details definitely to be worked out, and as Larry will tell you, it is evolving all the time. We talk about grading plans, etc. To be true to the original concept, addressing this part of the city and our environmental and passive areas, I think one of these options will make a much better project. You may want to drive by the site and see what it is now and if the City is able to make this happen, it will

certainly be a showcase for the City on how to take a really challenged area and make it into an area that is positive."

Vice President Saltzgaver asked if anyone had questions.

Commissioner Guerra stated that he wanted to clarify the public use that the general public could walk in during the day. But he heard that there is one central gate to get into the facility.

Mr. Hester responded that there is one gate into the active area.

Commissioner Guerra asked that if he wanted to ride with his boys on his bicycle to go see the wetland area, he could just do that and walk right in.

Mr. Hester responded, "Yes. The main athletic fields would be fenced for security and control of access, but the passive area and the parking lot and all those areas would be open. We would have to look at the safety issues, as it relates to those areas also. But during the day, the gates would be open for people to come in and just walk around."

Commissioner Guerra stated that it was his understanding that there are active oil wells on the property. He asked about the non-active ones. Could those be turned into active ones after the park opens? He noted that on the site plan there are a couple of oil wells in the middle of a soccer field.

Mr. Eschen responded that there are 46 wells on the site, 17 are active. The City has part of the royalty interest in the oil below the site, but there are also other partners and there is an oil well operator. The operator has basically surface access throughout the site. They can go drill a well wherever they want to. As a part of our deal with them, we are making some land transactions. We will have a contract that will restrict them from doing that once we have a developed plan, they won't be able to go back and drill in the middle of one of our fields. We are negotiating to take that right away from them. They have that now, but we are going to take that out of the project in exchange for cash and a land swap.

Mr. Hester said that on the plans there are some active wells and some of the fields are where they are because of those.

Mr. Eschen said, "There are 17 active wells and we are completely in control of where the softball field locations are. Larry has spent hundreds of hours moving fields around to fit them in between the oil wells. That is why in the options we didn't make any changes in the baseball part of the park, because we just couldn't move them anywhere and avoid the oil wells."

Mr. Hester stated that they are going to be abandoning some of the oil wells and some of them are being brought in.

Mr. Eschen indicated that due to the grading, some of them would have to be re-elevated.

Mr. Hester said that it is an easy challenge.

Vice President Saltzgaver addressed the public. "I would ask you to make your comments directly to what we are addressing today, and that is the potential for these options. The sports park itself has been approved and we are not talking about operation of the sports park today. That is way down the road. I would ask finally that you limit your comments to three minutes. With that, the floor is open. Please give your name and address for the record."

"My name is Steve Hoy. I live at 6324 E. Colorado St., Long Beach, 90803. I am a current president of the youth baseball and softball in El Dorado Park. We currently serve over 550 boys and girls. We operate on four fields currently; two of them are baseball fields that are dedicated just to the boys that aren't used by the girls. They are permitted by the City for other uses, but they are not used by adult softball. Two are adult softball fields, and we over the years have lost time on those fields. This year the Department has backed up the adult softball times to 6:00 p.m. It used to be 6:30 p.m. So our ability to operate games on those two fields has been heavily restricted. It is hard to get people to come and play because we have to start at 4:30 p.m. in order to get a game in by 6:00 p.m., to be off the field. The restriction now is going from 6:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. has put a real crimp in our ability to service the kids. And, obviously we are in total support of what the City is doing here to not only increase our ability to service the kids but also to continue to service the adults as well. So, we are in support and obviously in vast need of, we need those fields until 9:00 p.m. or 10:00 p.m., and we can use them and not having them is a real detriment for us. We are in support."

"My name is Johnny Stenson. I am a 40 year resident of Long Beach and I serve as the President of the West Side Long Beach Youth Foundation. I represent over 5,000 kids that are involved in all the various sports over on the west side. We have been a supporter of this project for some time. We have participated in the various meetings that have been conducted, where we got an opportunity to provide input. We all know the local parks are overcrowded. The kids aren't having the opportunity to be able to play sports in their local community because of the adults that are paying to play and take up the time and space on these fields. A project like this is something that we really need because it is going to give parks back to the children that are in the communities. We have seen compromises. While we are not happy that the soccer fields have been reduced from four to three and that the golf learning center has been taken out of the project. In order to reach a compromise, we are accepting the hard work and effort that has been done by the Planning Commissioners and by the architect and everyone involved. We know it has been a difficult process for them. We also understand those in the community that are concerned about wetlands and natural habitat. We put our faith and

our confidence in those that have put forth the plan here. And we can live with the plan the way it is, to compromise, either one, three soccer fields, either one of the options here, we can live with it as long as we move forth with this project and give the local parks back to the kids and the communities."

"Chairman and Commissioners, my name is Mike Donelon. I live in California Heights. I am going to hand you an article that was published in the Press Telegram that I wrote. And, it pretty much speaks for itself. To save time, I am going to read it guickly and make some brief comments. During the El Dorado Park debacle, most of you remember that when the sports park was originally planned when I sat on the City Council. I represented the area where the sports park has now been moved. I must take issue with this lack of outreach thing. During my term as a City Council member and when this park was moved to that location, I had community meetings. I addressed the issue at every neighborhood association meeting in the 7th District. I had Parks and Recreation with me. We had a plan. The hair kind of stands up on my back when I see attempts to delay a process that has been ongoing for 20 years. And I know that I did due-diligence when I was on the City Council to bring this project forward, and the only thing that was recommended by the community at that time was some space around the park, a jogging path, of course a creek and a public skate park. I am going to read this really quickly and I should be able to summarize my comments. During my term as Councilmember, one of the most controversial issues I dealt with was the location of the long-studied pay-for-play sports complex at El Dorado Park. This issue was the foundation for the creation of Save the Parks, a group started by local environmentalists. Their goal was to stop the sports complex from being built in El Dorado Park to preserve open space. After several years of hard work, the group was successful in having the City relocate the project to the southwest corner of Orange Avenue and Spring Street, a site that has a long history of soil contamination issues. The site is also geographically unsuited for any other type of development. The intent of the pay-for-play sports complex is to move adults to that facility and create more space and opportunities for youth activities in our free public parks. With an increase in youth that desperately need outdoor physical activities, I find it hard to believe that the same activists that opposed the El Dorado Park location are now attempting to downsize the space for sports activities and create more open space. I recognize the importance of educating youth about environmental issues. It is equally, if not more important to provide outdoor activities for our young people, especially those that are at risk. The environmentalist I have read about, and myself, have been fortunate enough to have been able to provide many opportunities for our Many families depend on local park activities to give their children that much needed outlet they get from sports. It is an opportunity for kids to vent and relax with their friends. I assure you that the last thing my kids would want to do is sit and watch open space instead of kicking a soccer ball or doing back flips off a ramp at a skate park. There comes a time when we as adults should set aside our personal political agendas and let the kids have their way. It is my hope that our elected officials will remember that they were

kids once upon a time and allow maximum space for sports activities and give the youth of Long Beach what they need most; free activities in free parks, close to their own homes."

Mr. Donelon said, "This was done in November and we intend to carry this message, at least I do, to the City Council. During my term with the City Council in 1996, I brought forth a proposal that everyone thought was absolutely insane. And that was to create free and public skate parks. During that time I had the opportunity to work with hundreds of kids. And during my term on the City Council I represented West Long Beach. I know the problems that we had with adult sports in our free parks. Not just to mention the space that the kids need, but some of the issues they had in West Long Beach like in Hudson Park, the drinking, fighting, inappropriate behavior by adults. This is a great passion and I don't have many. I don't care about politics, but if there is one passion I have that I know, I have many people behind me, is for this city's youth. I know Bea and Harry, you guys have been here for a long time and I know all of you share the same passion that I do. Most of you worked very hard with the community on the skate park program. In closing I just want to say, I didn't look at the plans and I really don't care. I want the City to do what it intended to do 20 years ago and it has been a very, very long time, is create the most space you can for adult sports to free up the space in our free public parks for our kids. And I am not an environmentalist, but when it comes to this city's kids, and especially those at risk, I really don't give a damn about watering holes, about ducks, geese, anything. I do sincerely care about this city's kids and I would hope that you guys would support this. Thank you."

"Good morning Commissioners. I think what I am about to say mirrors what Mr. Hoy and this gentleman just said. My name is Lisa Duarte and I am the current president of Los Altos Bobby Sox. With me today is our division representative, Yvette Ramos, and the national director, of Bobby Sock Nation, Kym Rohlf. Since 1952, Bobby Sox Softball has been a non-profit, charitable, educational organization giving the girls of Long Beach and all over the freedom to play a game of softball. Los Altos Softball has been part of that organization for decades. Our home fields are now at El Dorado and Marina Vista Parks and we have been fortunate over the years to be able to provide the youth of Long Beach with a place to play. The number of children who want to participate in youth softball as well as soccer and other sports activities has increased dramatically in Southern California and we at Los Altos Bobby Sox, as I am sure all the other youth sports organizations, are doing all we can do accommodate this growing need. Los Altos Bobby Sox has approximately 160 children who participate in our softball program and we are now at the point where we are turning children away. We are turning children away because we don't have enough field time at Marina Vista Park we have been asked to cut our usage on Saturdays so that the adult soccer leagues can come in and play on that field. Even more disheartening is that as we turn the children away, so do all the other youth leagues. They are too full to capacity and these children simply have no place else to go. We know that the sports complex will

significantly increase ours as well as soccer and other youth sports programs and allow more children in the City of Long Beach to have a place to play. The mere fact that all these children want to participate in a youth sports program is of utmost importance."

"My name is Bob McKittrick and I represent the youth of the community as well as local baseball. Tom Parker said I was the self-proclaimed champion of the youth one time. I told him that I have been called worse. I would rather be a self-proclaimed champion of the kids than any other thing I can think of. I go back to the day that this thing first became a concept. Jim Ruth came up with this as a concept and I said, 'hey, let's go to town.' I was thinking then that it probably wouldn't help my children by the time we got it conceptually put together. If we don't get on the ball, it's going to have to be my great grandkids. We need to move forward on this. You know what, I believe in being a good neighbor and trying to work with different people in the community. This has been an excellent plan. I feel like Mike did. You know, something is better than nothing but we have to build this thing. I would like my grandkids to see this before they have their children play on it. All the things that these people said are a hundred times true and that was the whole idea. Get the adults off the inner-city fields so we can get some of the soccer overlays off, so everyone can have something they can kind of call home and be able to invest their money into leagues and fields they can call home. They invest hundreds of dollars in those fields, not just their time. I presented a thing one time to the Commission. I think we saved something like \$9 million a year just off of our program. Correct me if I am wrong, Bea, but I think that was the number that we came up with. So the groups are giving something back. And that was based on minimum wage with no benefits. I beg of you, push this thing on down the road. We are willing to make the exceptions here and I am sure these people feel the same way. Let's get it done for the kids. There are more problems with idle minds and idle hands. Thank you."

"Good morning. Kristen Autry, P.O. Box 20378. I was wondering, I really think that balance is very important in our life and as you can see in El Dorado Park there is lots of beautiful open space. Not everybody is an athlete. Some people like to sit and look at nature and write. I think we are very fortunate that David is trying to bring more balance into the sports park. We really need to know that open space is important."

"I'm Trey Scharlin, Long Beach Soccer Club, 8030 Tarma Street. I just want to say that it is obviously disheartening to us to see soccer fields removed from the plan. What the relief that these soccer fields can give to the kids in the community, one thing that I want the Commission to understand and the public to understand is gone are the days when kids are going to the park and just playing and just being involved in themselves. Organized sports and organized activities, things like that, are the future and it is the direction, unfortunately that we are heading with our youth. Loosing fields to the adults, I have played in men's leagues for many years and have fought on both sides of this. But we do

need more field space, not only for soccer but for all youth sports. There are roughly about 3,000 to 5,000 who converge on soccer fields in Long Beach every day. So, we do need more soccer fields but we do need this sports park to help relieve the space and give these kids an opportunity to go out and play. We have turned away kids; every organization has to turn away kids. But the reason is because that kids aren't going to these parks and playing on their own any more. So free space is great, we do need free space but we do need these fields to give these kids a place to play. Hopefully, we can just push this forward and everybody's happy in the community, but we desperately, desperately need this."

"Michael Gatz, 506 (? inaudible) Avenue. I represent AYSO 577, which is the east side of Belmont Shore area for youth soccer. This year we had 1,722 kids play soccer with us. We have increased our number by about 10%. We don't have enough fields to run practices or game times. The sports park would be a great improvement. It would really help us and more importantly, we hope it can happen as soon as possible because we have run out of fields and are turning kids away that can't play soccer or participate in the sport they choose. That not only affects soccer but also affects other sports."

Mr. Sundstrom made the following comments. "I just want to make a request of staff that first of all, we don't oppose youth sports and we don't oppose construction of fields. If that is a point of division, it is entirely in the imagination of some speakers at the podium today. What I would like to do is to create some realistic expectations about when these fields might be delivered to the community. Perhaps either Dennis or Phil could address and give some realism of raising \$40 million for this park and actually getting some of these fields in service. I am not talking about a year from now; we may not talking about five years or more from now. I'd like to hear from the experts. I think that is important to make that part of public record."

Vice President Saltzgaver then spoke. "I am going to bring it back within behind the rail, as they say. I will start with that question. Financing has been an issue. Bea, you have raised that issue in the past. We need some kind of reality check here."

Mr. Hester said, "Well, the tough part is we don't know what it will cost us. I have heard all kinds of numbers that have been floating out there from \$20 million to \$50 million. As soon as the EIR gets close to finalization, staff has already started internal meetings to talk about financing opportunities for this. The City has gotten some federal money to do some street work and stuff. That will help out. Until we get the final plan decided, there is no way to tell how much this is going to cost and where we are going to go to try and get this financed. There are some things that are in place, essentially to help. Until we get the final plan settled, and that is what has been frustrating is getting the plan in place, we will know exactly what we are talking about. Again, this has been the top project in the city, in spite of all the other things that are talked about.

The Mayor references it all the time. So I think that once we get the EIR is in place and we know what this project is, we move forth with putting together the financing."

Mr. Eschen said that considering the physical aspects, the construction design would take between 12 and 18 months and the construction would take between 12 and 18 months. So if financing were in place, it could be built within three years.

Mr. McKittrick said, "The question is, if we start today moving forward, it doesn't matter, it is going to take the same amount to fund it if it is two years from now than it is to fund it today if we start on it, wouldn't we? If it is going to take ten years from today or ten years, two years from now."

Vice President Saltzgaver said, "Commissioners, Brett."

Commissioner Waterfield commented, "I just want say from a Commissioners standpoint and being involved in the city, I want to commend Larry and the staff who are really, really working on what has been a challenging site and the compromises that we hear. I also wasn't real excited about seeing a soccer field go away. But, I think that in trying to meet all the needs of the community, everyone from the staff has taken a responsible role in doing that. You feel very passionate about the opportunity to provide this to the community and also I want to give a thanks of appreciation to all the many youth sports volunteers, not paid people, volunteers, who have come in today to let it be known how important it is and also are constantly involved in shaping the character and lives of our youth. We appreciate that also."

Vice President Saltzgaver said, "Bea, question, comment."

Commissioner Antenore spoke. "I have a comment. I have been working on this in different ways since the outset with Bob McKittrick on a committee that I chaired. I want to see a sports complex. I think you all know my feelings about the amount of discussion that we have had through the years. I really feel that we are never going to please everybody and that we need to move ahead with the sports complex. And if some people are unhappy, happiness is not 100% and we have to look what it is going to do for the most people for the benefit. I frankly have said before, I don't think I am going to live to see it."

Vice President Saltzgaver said, "The new Commissioner.".

Commissioner Guerra said, "The term trial by fire is appropriate. Although I have been doing a lot of speed reading in the last week to get caught up, I don't feel I have to get caught up too much because I do live very close to the proposed project. I shouldn't say proposed, future project. And I have young children, as I mentioned earlier, and I do hope that some day they can use the facility. Bea made a comment a minute ago that she still hopes to be alive.

While I am very sorry to hear you say that, so we should move it forward pretty quickly. I too, from what I have seen and what I have heard, I feel that the efforts have been done to bring a balance to the project. In looking at the last two recommendations or proposals, in my opinion I think that that balance has been met. So, I commend all the efforts of all the staff and City personnel who have worked hard to do this, as well as the volunteers, because I too am a volunteer in my own neighborhood. I realize to take time out of your day to come out and speak to something so important is important for our youth and for our own kids. I appreciate that as well. Thank you."

Vice President Saltzgaver said, "Drew."

Commissioner Satariano spoke. "Yes, thank you. I have a couple of comments that I want to make. First I need to disclose that I have a son who plays in the Los Altos Baseball/Softball organization and I have experienced the overloading of the fields where the softball teams come full of enthusiasm and have to vacate the fields early. But that aside with my Commissioners hat on. I respectfully disagree with Mr. Sundstrom. I don't think that the process has been flawed. In fact, I think it is an exemplary example of city government working with citizens to try to strike a balance and get it right. I definitely am not for dragging this on much longer. I think that staff has bent over backwards to accommodate environmental issues and balance issues in just about everything they can and continue to move the ball forward. To this day they are continuing to bend over backwards and I would like to see us come to the end of a process and start this project knowing that we can adjust on the fly as we go forward and it would be monitored like no project has been monitored before. But, whether it comes in the way of motion from this Commission or however you'd like to accept it Harry, I would just like the Commission to go on record today recommending, whether it be the original plan or whether it be plan 3A or 3B. pick a plan and let's move forward and take that momentum and enthusiasm to the City Council and let them know in no uncertain terms that we want this project to go forward and I think that's what we are hearing from the people at the podium today. I would also like to thank the youth sports volunteers in the city for all of the time that they do volunteer for our kids."

Vice President Saltzgaver said, "Is that in the form of a motion?"

Commissioner Satariano said, "I would like to say that in the form of a motion, and I would receive a second from one of the Commissioners."

Commissioner Waterfield said, "I would second that."

Vice President Saltzgaver spoke. "Before I take a vote I would like to take the prerogative of the chair and make a couple of comments myself. I have been assured that these alternative plans fit within the purview of the currently certified EIR. That is critical in that if we have to go back to do a new EIR, it is more time again. But, as I have been assured both by the experts

environmentally and legally, that we are within the certified EIR. I want to make sure everyone knows that. Second, I would like to also say that I believe that this spirit of compromise has been one that I have not seen in the city before. The fact that there remains some contentiousness is just life I suppose. The fact that there has been an attempt to accommodate both and Option 3B is less advantageous to the active sports park in that our soccer folks are going to have to walk a little further and our soccer folks are going to have to haul their equipment a little further. I am really kind of excited about the idea of actually making Exxon Hill accessible to the public. In that sense, I do believe that we have come up with a better plan. I hate cliches, but I believe this is a win, win situation. I can say that honestly instead of just trying to make a point politically. I believe this has been a really good process that we have gone through. Finally, I would say that remember this is a recommendation to the City Council. We have already approved the idea of the sports park here. City Council will make that decision. With that said, I call for the vote."

Mr. Hester said that he had a couple of comments. "First of all, I think in fairness to Mr. Sundstrom, who came today and has been representing the environmental interest, he should be recognized for, getting us to this particular balance. I think his approach in working with the community and the staff in trying to come to alternatives has made it much easier to be able to get there. Previously, that has always been a very difficult situation. But, I think that his ability to look at compromise and his willingness to take that lead also should be recognized. There are a lot of people who trust him and I think in fairness to him, we should try to support him and his efforts to keep that group working together with us. Second thing I wanted to say is that I have been department head here, and one of my primary goals is to look at other areas other than just the active areas. I think that we have in the last five or six years made significant increases in open space throughout the city, commitments to preservation of wetland areas, access to the Los Angeles River and some of those type of things. I think that we have tried, as a department, to balance that. At the same time, we have to stand face to face with these individuals out here who definitely need more space, and that still is our continuing challenge. I just need to get clarification of what the motion is. If we are moving forward, is it to recommend to the City Council three alternatives, which is the original plan, Option A, 3A, and Option 3B for their consideration. You are not making an independent recommendation, you are looking at options. If that is your recommendation, I would suggest also that there is another meeting set for February 25, to share these particular options with some of the community members, with the understanding that we are not redesigning the plans but to share the options. If your plan is to move forth with the three options, we would recommend also just to keep the Commission in the loop that we be instructed to come back to you at your March meeting to update you about that meeting and anything that happened as a result of that meeting. Which, I wouldn't anticipate that there would be. But there might be some more refinement of some of these particular plans, and you need to be made aware of that before they go to the City Council."

Commissioner Satariano said, "I think the spirit that I was trying to capture was that any one of the three would be acceptable. We would certainly want an update as to what comes from that meeting in February. I think the statement that I would hope the Commission would make that just pick one of the three viable options that everyone is comfortable with and move forward and not go back to the drawing board."

Commission Antenore asked, "So what is the motion?"

Vice President Saltzgaver said that the motion is to recommend the three options to the City Council with the plea to move this project forward and with the understanding that we will receive an update from the February 25 meeting at the March Commission meeting.

Commission Guerra said, "Would it be possible at our March for us to have one option and make a motion to recommend that one option?"

Mr. Hester responded, "Yes." As a result of the February 25, if there seems to be a consensus that comes out of that meeting, I can say yes. We can come back and then you as a Commission can decide if you wanted to focus more on one or the other. I don't want to speak for Council, but in the Council's interest in the original plan, they are very much interested in also what the other options that have been looked at."

It was moved by Commissioner Satariano and seconded by Commissioner Waterfield to recommend to the City Manager, the Planning Commission and the City Council that Option 3A and 3B are viable designs for improvement of a Sports Park and passive park as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

Vice President Saltzgaver requested a short break.

Vice President Saltzgaver, after returning from the break, indicated that they would go back to the regular items on the agenda.

VI. COMMITTEE STATUS REPORTS

A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE President Kozaites, Chair

Vice President Saltzgaver said that the Executive Committee met and went over the agenda. The heard they were to have a new Commissioner and we are excited about that. They also discussed a little bit about the sports park.

B. FINANCE AND APPEALS COMMITTEE Commissioner Satariano, Chair

Commissioner Satariano said that the report was included in the packet. He reported that one third of the fiscal year has expired and encouraged the Commissioners to look at the bottom line.

Vice President Saltzgaver said that he would like to go back to the Executive Committee report for just a second. He said that they would be asking Commissioner Guerra to serve on several committees, but he would prefer to defer that to when the President returns and he has a chance to get together with him. We can expect the adjusted committee assignments next month.

C. PARK SAFETY COMMITTEE Commissioner Waterfield, Chair

Commissioner Waterfield stated that the Park Safety Committee did not meet this month. He turned the Commissioner's attention to the incident statistic report and the increasing public contacts, which is a good sign that rangers are getting out and interacting with the public.

Vice President Saltzgaver asked what the status was of hiring a Chief Park Ranger.

Mr. Hester responded that William Greco is Acting Chief Park Ranger.

Commissioner Waterfield asked if there was any update on the ranger station.

Mr. Hester responded that it is moving forward.

Acting Chief Ranger Greco responded that they just picked the interior colors and it is moving right along.

D. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND CUSTOMER SATISFACTION COMMITTEE

Commissioner Satariano, Chair

Commissioner Satariano stated that the Committee did not meet this month. The report was mailed separately and he briefly went over the report on how customer comment cards are processed.

E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS COMMITTEE Commissioner George, Chair

Commissioner George stated that the Committee met this morning and they discussed the sports park.

F. CITY SCHOOLS/JOINT COMMITTEE Commissioner Antenore, Chair

Commissioner Antenore requested Vice President Saltzgaver to go over the highlights of the meeting, since she was not able to attend.

Vice President Saltzgaver briefly went over the meeting.

G. SPECIAL EVENTS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE Vice President Saltzgaver, Chair

Vice President Saltzgaver requested that Commissioner Satariano brief the Commissioners on the meeting.

Commissioner Satariano said that this is a new committee established to address the need for coverage on events permitted by both the Special Events and Filming Bureau and Community Recreation Programs Bureau.

VII. <u>DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO COMMISSION</u>

A. DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT – JANUARY 2006

Commissioner Satariano mentioned that on page 22, the 22 tons removed from the beaches seemed less than previous spring numbers.

Mr. Shippey responded that it was because there haven't been the storms as in previous years, to wash the debris down the rivers.

Commissioner Antenore asked what the California Air Resources Board training on January 25, was all about, as listed on page 9.

Mr. Hester stated that they probably just rented our facility. We would have to get back to her.

Commissioner Guerra stated that he was impressed by the monthly highlights because he had no idea how many things are happening. He asked for a listing of how many parks there are and what all the functions of what each parks do.

Mr. Hester stated that staff would put together a packet.

VIII. CORRESPONDENCE

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that there was no correspondence received, other than the request from Mr. Sundstrom on the Sports Park item.

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that there was no unfinished business.

XI. COMMENTS

A. AUDIENCE

Vice President Saltzgaver asked for comments from the audience. There were no comments from the audience.

B. STAFF

Mr. Alvin Bernstein distributed flyers on events at the Rancho Los Cerritos.

Mr. Hester went over the plan to extend the Municipal Band from six weeks to eight weeks.

C. COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Waterfield apologized for being late; he was attending the NCCJ breakfast.

Commissioner Waterfield also said that CSULB is in the middle of planning a community collaboration day symposium, which brings together community agencies, which serve the youth. He would discuss this more with Chrissy Marshall.

Commissioner Waterfield said that he knows that the City responded to the Hurricane Katrina and he found out that there was a video that was put together that the campus would like to access. On April 9, he would be taking about 35 students on an alternative spring break trip to Lake Charles, Louisiana to build houses. Prior to that, they would like to hear from people in the community who responded to the disaster.

Mr. Hester recommended that he talk to the Fire Chief. They were called and worked there.

Commissioner Antenore stated that she would not be able to attend the March Commission meeting; she would be attending an EdSource conference.

Commissioner Guerra said that he lives in California Heights and technically there are no parks near that neighborhood. At some point he would like to discuss pocket parks for that area. The Sports Park would be the nearest park to that neighborhood.

Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting February 16, 2006 Page 23

Mr. Hester said he would be very interested in discussing options for smaller parks in the area because they spend a lot of time trying to find locations.

Mr. Hester thanked the Commission for coming together on the Sports Park project because it has been a long process.

XII. <u>NEXT MEETING</u>

The next meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, March 16, 2006, at El Dorado Park West, in the Senior Center Library, 2800 Studebaker Rd., Long Beach.

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

President Kozaites adjourned the meeting at 11:00 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dack

Robin Black

Executive Secretary

to the Director

c: Phil T. Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

JANUARY 19, 2006

The regular meeting of the City Planning Commission and public hearing convened at 1:35pm in the City Council Chambers, 333 W. Ocean Boulevard.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS: Leslie Gentile, Nick Sramek

Charles Winn, Mitch Rouse

Morton Stuhlbarg

ABSENT: EXCUSED:

Charles Greenberg, Matthew Jenkins

ACTING CHAIRMAN:

Leslie Gentile

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Suzanne Frick, Director

Greg Carpenter, Planning Manager Carolyne Bihn, Zoning Officer Angela Reynolds, Advance Planning

Jeff Winklepleck, Planner Lemuel Hawkins, Planner Monica Mendoza, Planner Steve Valdez, Planner

OTHERS PRESENT:

Lisa Peskay Malmsten, Deputy City

Attorney

Kathy Brown, Minutes Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Stuhlbarg.

MINUTES

The minutes of November 3, 2005 were approved on a motion by Commissioner Sramek, seconded by Commissioner Winn and carried 5-0. Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

The minutes of December 1, 2005 were approved on a motion by Commissioner Winn, seconded by Commissioner Rouse, and carried 5-0. Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

The minutes of December 15, 2005 were approved on a motion'by Commissioner Winn, seconded by Commissioner Sramek, and carried 5-0. Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

SWEARING OF WITNESSES

CONSENT CALENDAR

At the request of an audience member, Item 1F was removed from the Consent Calendar.

Commissioner Sramek then moved to approve Items 1A, 1B, 1C, 1D, 1E and 1G of the Consent Calendar as presented by staff with modified conditions for Item 1C. Commissioner Rouse seconded the motion, which passed 5-0. Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

1A. Case No. 0503-37, CE 06-02, Site Plan Review, Tentative Parcel Map

Applicant: Gary Lamb, Interstices, Inc.

Subject Site: 217 & 223-231 Linden Avenue (Council Dist. 2) Description: Request for approval of a Site Plan Review and Tentative Parcel Map No. 0503-37 for construction of a three-story, four-unit condominium development with a nine-car garage and a request to adjust the lot line between 217 & 223 Linden Avenue.

Approved the Site Plan Review and Tentative Parcel Map No. 0503-37, subject to conditions.

1B. Case No. 0510-38, CE 05-213, Tentative Tract Map

Applicant: Robert Vargo, Subtec

Subject Site: 4112 East 7th Street (Council District 3)
Description: Request for approval of Tentative Tract Map
No. 064914 to convert an existing eight unit apartment
building into condominiums.

Approved Tentative Tract Map No. 064914, subject to conditions.

1C. Case No. 0510-41, CE 05-278, Conditional Use Permit, Local Coastal Development Permit

Applicant: Norm McLeod

Subject Site: 3515 East Ocean Blvd. (Council District 3) Description: Request for approval of Conditional Use Permit to construct and maintain a roof-mounted cellular and personal communication facility on an existing apartment building.

Approved the Conditional Use Permit, subject to conditions.

1D. Case No. 0511-01, CE 05-214, Tentative Tract Map

Applicant: Joann Wahl

Subject Site: 307 Coronado Avenue (Council District 2)
Description: Request for approval of Tentative Tract Map
No. 064630 to convert an existing four unit building into
condominiums.

Approved Tentative Tract Map No. 064630 subject to conditions.

1E. Case No. 0511-13, CE 05-223, Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. 064749

Applicant: Tony Amer

Subject Site: 613 West 3rd Street (Council District 1)
Description: Request for approval of Vesting Tentative
Parcel Map No. 064749 to subdivide a four unit building
currently under construction for condominium purposes.

Approved Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. 064749 subject to conditions.

1F. Case No. 0511-16, CE 05-235, Vesting Tentative Tract Map. No. 065046

Applicant: Adrienne Bridges

Subject Site: 1705 East 10th Street (Council District 2)
Description: Request for approval of Waived Vesting
Tentative Map No. 065046, to convert an existing eighteenunit apartment building into condominiums.

Item #1F removed to the regular agenda.

1G. Case No. 0511-17, CE 05-236, Tentative Tract Map No. 065045

Applicant: Adrienne Bridges

Subject Site: 750 Rose Avenue (Council District 2)

Description: Request for approval of Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 065045 to convert an existing twenty-six unit

apartment building into condominiums.

Approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 065045 subject to conditions.

REGULAR AGENDA

1F. Case No. 0511-16, CE 05-235, Vesting Tentative Parcel Map. No. 065046

Applicant: Adrienne Bridges

Subject Site: 1705 East 10th Street (Council District 2)

Description: Request for approval of Waived Vesting

Tentative Map No. 065046, to convert an existing eight-unit

apartment building into condominiums.

Planner Steve Valdez presented the staff report recommending approval of the request since it met subdivision and zoning regulations and would provide increased home ownership opportunities in the City.

Vickie Johnson, 1046 Minerva Place, area resident, expressed concern that the project was actually underparked.

Adrienne Bridges, 1705 East 10th Street, applicant, explained that some of the parking was inside the complex giving the appearance of being underparked.

Commissioner Gentile suggested that Ms. Johnson review the site plan to confirm that there was enough parking.

Commissioner Sramek moved to approve the Waived Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 065046, subject to conditions.

Commissioner Rouse seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

2. DISCUSSION ITEM - Promenade Landscape Master Plan

Jae VonKlug, Redevelopment Project Officer, discussed the scope of the project.

Jon Cicchetti, landscape architect, presented drawings of the project, and described the overall landscape plan, explaining the historical framework of the designs and the public art aspect.

Don Darnauer, West End Community Association, 618 Pine Avenue, expressed concerns about the security at the proposed amphitheater and the location of the mural.

Jae VonKlug explained that security at the amphitheater would be enhanced, and that they did not intend to change the location of the mural due to the moving cost and risk to the art itself.

Chairman Gentile made a suggestion about refining the gateway areas to balance the density of the design elements. Ms. VonKlug added that the gateway arches would probably be part of the public art program which would be defined in the next stage of the project.

Commissioner Sramek moved to receive and file the report.

Commissioner Rouse seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

3. Case No. 0507-29, EIR 47-86 (Certified); Modification to Approved Permit; Mitigated Negative Declaration No. 29-05

Applicant: Melissa Beeler

Subject Site: 5761 Colorado Street (Council District 3) Description: Request for approval of a modification to an approved permit (Master Plan) to allow construction of a 16,422 square foot educational and cultural building at the Greek Orthodox Church.

Jeff Winklepleck presented the staff report recommending approval of the modification since the proposed building was consistent with the previously approved family center and was architecturally attractive while remaining in conformance with all applicable code requirements.

Falanai Ala, 2735 E. Hill Street, Signal Hill, project designer, explained how the design incorporated existing church elements.

Nick Monios, 2818 Monogram Avenue, spoke in favor of the project

Commissioner Winn moved to approve the modification to the approved permit (Master Plan) subject to conditions, and to certify Mitigated Negative Declaration ND 29-05. Commissioner Stuhlbarg seconded the motion, which passed 4-0-1. Commissioner Gentile abstained, and Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

4. Case No. 0511-23, CE 05-279, Conditional Use Permit

Applicant: Edward Gala

Subject Site: 5000 Lew Davis Street (Veterans Stadium)

(Council District 5)

Description: Request approval for a Conditional Use Permit to construct and maintain a 55' high ground-mounted cellular and personal communications services facility at Veterans' Stadium.

Lemuel Hawkins presented the staff report recommending denial of the request since the proposed monopole would be located very close to an existing non-stealth monopole onto which the carrier has the ability to co-locate with reduced overall visual impact.

Ed Gala, 310 Commerce, Irvine, 92602, Sprint Nextel, applicant, stated he disagreed with the staff recommendation because Nextel intended to serve Long Beach City College, who wanted radio coverage on their campus plus security lighting which would preclude co-location on the existing monopole.

In response to a query from Commissioner Rouse, Mr. Gala agreed that they could achieve all goals besides lighting the campus by co-locating on other monopole 100' away.

Commissioner Winn expressed concern that approval could be precedent setting. Mr. Hawkins confirmed that there was a lease agreement signed by the Board of Trustees from the College supporting the new light standard and the application submitted by Nextel.

Herbert Levi, 5153 Hanbury Street, said his informal survey of 12 nearby residents indicated only one was against the project, and the others would accept it if a monopalm or monopine was used.

Dave Velkov, 3854 Clark Avenue, suggested locating the monopole in a nearby parking lot, and expressed concern about potential glare and view blockage created by the proposed lighting.

Commissioner Winn moved to continue the item to the meeting of February 16, 2006, to allow staff to query Long Beach City College to see if they need the additional light pole and for the applicant to review the potential for colocation.

Commissioner Rouse seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

5. Case No. 0511-24, CE 05-242, Conditional Use Permit

Applicant: Jill Warino, Carolyne Woodruff
Subject Site: 5511 East Spring St. (Council District 5)
Description: Request for a Conditional Use Permit to
allow expansion of an existing tavern (Tracy's Bar &
Grill).

Monica Mendoza presented the staff report recommending approval of the permit since conditions relating to maintenance, loitering, hours, etc. would ensure that the proposed project would have minimal negative impacts on adjacent land uses.

Carolyne Galbraith-Woodruff, 5511 E. Spring Street, applicant, discussed their community outreach efforts and stated that their goal was to improve the bathroom area.

Commissioner Stuhlbarg noted that area residents have expressed concern about a nuisance created by bar patrons. Mrs. Woodruff claimed there had been no complaints against the bar by the police and that they had some security coverage provided by the landlord, as well as lighting and cameras.

John Taylor, 5514 Pageantry, asked for a 30-day continuance to allow area residents to meet with staff to discuss their concerns about ongoing noise and safety issues at the bar.

Helen Najar, 3337 San Anseline, testified in favor of the project, lauding the community involvement and projects fostered by the business owners.

Commissioner Stuhlbarg said that in his opinion, the noise or problems arising from bar patrons would not change due to the scope of this addition.

Commissioner Rouse suggested that residents use other avenues within the City government to deal with this issue, and not use this application to make small improvements to a business as leverage.

Commissioner Stuhlbarg moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit, subject to conditions. Commissioner Rouse seconded the motion, which passed 5-0. Commissioners Greenberg and Jenkins were absent.

MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE

There were no matters from the audience.

MATTERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING

Suzanne Frick introduced new Urban Design Officer Stephanie Reich.

Carolyne Bihn introduced new planners Jaime Ustin and Scott Kinsey.

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION

There were no matters from the Planning Commission.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 3:20pm.

Based on notes taken by Kathy Brown Respectfully submitted,

Marcia Gold Minutes Clerk

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

FEBRUARY 2, 2006

The regular meeting of the City Planning Commission and public hearing convened at 1:34 pm in the City Council Chambers, 333 W. Ocean Boulevard.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS: Matthew Jenkins, Nick Sramek

Charles Winn, Mitch Rouse

Morton Stuhlbarg, Charles Greenberg

(arrived for Item 3)

ABSENT: EXCUSED:

Leslie Gentile

CHAIRMAN:

Matthew Jenkins

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Suzanne Frick, Director

Greg Carpenter, Planning Manager Carolyne Bihn, Zoning Officer Angela Reynolds, Advance Planning

Lynette Ferenczy, Planner

Jayme Mekis, Planner Steven Valdez, Planner

OTHERS PRESENT:

Mike Mais, Deputy City Attorney

Marcia Gold, Minutes Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Rouse.

SWEARING OF WITNESSES

CONSENT CALENDAR

Commissioner Winn moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented by staff. Commissioner Sramek seconded the motion, which passed 4-0. Commissioner Rouse was outside the council chambers. Commissioner Gentile was absent and Commissioner Greenberg had not yet arrived.

Case No. 0510-01, CE 05-187, Conditional Use Permit, 1A. Site Plan Review

Applicant: Glenn Arneson

Subject Site: 4800 E. Pacific Coast Hwy. (Council Dist. 4) Description: Request for Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan Review approval to establish an oil change facility at

an existing car wash.

Approved the Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan Review requests subject to conditions.

1B. Case No. 0511-06, CE 05-217, Tentative Parcel Map

Applicant: Scott Ayres

Subject Site: 2331 East 10th Street (Council District 4) Description: Request for approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 065075 to convert eight residential dwelling units into condominiums.

Approved Tentative Tract Map No. 065075, subject to conditions.

REGULAR AGENDA

2. Case No. 0312-19, ND 02-05, Zone Change, Site Plan Review, Lot Merger, Standards Variance

Applicant: Pastor Nelson 1401 West 34th Street (Council District 7) Subject Site: Description: Request for a Zone Change for R-1-N (residential, single family) to I (Institutional) and Site Plan Review to remodel and expand an existing church and parking lot with a Standards Variance for a spire height of 40' (instead of not more than 30'); less than 5' interior landscape setback; relocating an existing driveway along the southern portion of the property approximately 20' from the corner of 34th Street and Delta Avenue (instead of not less than 90' from the corner); allowing side yard setbacks of 3' and 5' (instead of not less than 10'); providing 40 new parking spaces (instead of the required 44); and a Lot

Jayme Mekis presented the staff report recommending approval of the request since it would allow an existing church to remain as a permanent land use and to continue to provide services to the community with minimized potential land use conflicts due to the conditions of approval.

Merger.

Pastor Nelson, 1401 W. 34th Street, applicant, explained how they would use the improvements in continuing to serve area residents.

John Atkinson, 2865 Adriatic, homeowners association representative, stated that their group had no objection to the proposal and felt it would enhance the neighborhood.

Russell Yoakun, 3432 Denver, adjacent neighbor, expressed concern about potential littering, loitering and noise issues created by the parking lot and church uses.

Prentiss Mitchell Jr., 2941 Baltic Avenue, area resident, said he felt the church was an asset to the neighborhood and its religious infrastructure.

Shirley Jackson, 1385 Tabor Street, resident, agreed that the church was an asset and the requested improvements would help the pastor reach out to more neighbors.

Daniel Jones, 3238 Delta Avenue, agreed the church was an invaluable, longtime asset to all area residents.

Pastor Leo Holt, 3920 Denver Avenue, stated he supported the application but as a resident of the other church on the site, asked if there would be any conflict with their own outreach efforts.

Charles Patan, 3420 Denver Avenue, another on-site church resident, asked about the legal issues involved with their sublease at the site.

Deputy City Attorney Mais noted that the lease issue was a civil one outside the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission.

Resident John Atkinson proposed that the parking lot be gated when not in use to avoid through traffic problems.

Carolyne Bihn explained how the applicant would be required to mitigate specifically identified neighborhood concerns about lighting, access and security, and suggested adding conditions to require that the parking lot be secured after hours and that all music be played inside the church with the doors closed and soundproofed to meet noise ordinances. Pastor Nelson accepted the additional conditions.

Commissioner Sramek moved to certify Negative Declaration No. 02-05 and to approve the Zone Change, Site Plan Review, Lot Merger and Standards Variances with amended conditions.

Commissioner Stuhlbarg seconded the motion, which passed 5-0. Commissioner Gentile was absent and Commissioner Greenberg arrived during the discussion and didn't vote.

3. Case No. 0510-12, CE 05-192, Conditional Use Permit

Applicant: Mike Robinson

Subject Site: 2201 Lakewood Blvd. (Council District 5)
Description: Request for a Conditional Use Permit for a check cashing/money transfer store in a neighborhood shopping center.

Steven Valdez presented the staff report recommending denial of the request since there are already numerous financial institutions in the area, and because the use has the potential to raise the crime rate and calls for service.

Commissioner Greenberg said he thought it unfair to compare the clientele of a traditional bank to this check cashing operation. Angela Reynolds explained that the General Plan did not differentiate between the uses.

Commissioner Winn pointed out that the check cashing use was a valuable one for many neighborhoods and stringent conditions of approval were always in place.

Mike Robinson, 5617 Calhoun Avenue, Van Nuys, applicant, explained that their operation was more like a bank in that their hours of operation were similar and limited services were offered.

Marina Miller-Foley, 13629 Rachel Road, Yucaipa, 92399, Regional Manager, Check Into Cash, citied the safety records of their other 150 similar operations, and noted that they served as a payday advance service, not a check cashing service, and they required higher financial standards of their clients while remaining involved in community activities.

Ken Robertson, 250 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach, Treadwell Robertson, property owner, said this upscale operation was part of the overall improvement plan for his shopping center. Nate Zahn, 2158 Clark, neighbor, presented a petition from area residents in opposition to a traditional check cashing facility, and asked for more time to learn about the actual uses planned.

Dave Zahn, 2209 Lakewood Blvd., adjacent land owner, said he did not understand the operation type either, but he was concerned it could create a dangerous situation for clients with cash.

Commissioner Greenberg said he felt the payroll advance operation sounded benign but was being stereotyped as a typical check cashing operation, and he asked for input from the Police Department about the use.

Commissioner Greenberg moved to continue the item to the March 2, 2006 meeting in order to allow the applicant to meet with opposition to explain the use and for staff to assemble a list of conditions tailored for this specific use. Commissioner Winn seconded the motion, which passed 6-0. Commissioner Gentile was absent.

4. Case No. 0511-05, CE 05-216, Administrative Use Permit, Local Coastal Development Permit

Appellant: Ben Knight

Applicant: Casey Kammel for Executive Fitness

Subject Site: 5708 & 5710 East 2nd St. (Council District 3)

Description: Appeal of the Zoning Administrator's

decision to approve a Local Coastal Development Permit and Administrative Use Permit allowing the establishment of a personal training studio with spa, massage and cosmetic

care.

Jayme Mekis presented the staff report recommending denial of the appeal since the existing building is currently classified as legal non-conforming for parking, and because this use will generate less parking needs since the owner has agreed to limit the number of on-site clients.

Ben Knight, 5700 E. 2nd Street, appellant, stated he was opposed to the use because the area was underparked even if grandfathered, and he thought the area was already saturated with similar uses. Mr. Knight also claimed it would be too hard to police the limit on clients.

In response to a query from Commissioner Greenberg, who pointed out that most other permitted uses would generate greater parking demand, Mr. Knight said he'd rather see an art gallery,

consignment store or other single-clerk operation. Commissioner Stuhlbarg noted that most single-clerk stores were not financially viable in that high-rent district.

Doug Otto, 111 W. Ocean Blvd., S. 1300, applicant representative, stated they were in agreement with all the conditions of approval and that their own parking study showed adequate parking for the use. Mr. Otto also agreed to submit to staff specific plans to show all inside uses of the facility.

Robert Goforth, 5727 Campbell Walk, expressed support for the appeal, saying he was concerned about parking impacts in the evening when many other uses got busy.

Charlie Ligeman, 3580 E. Pacific Coast Hwy., #7, subject property owner, claimed personal experience with evening parking issues, saying that there was plenty of parking at that time, and a restaurant would have much more impact on the area.

John Segmeister, 148 Rivo Alto Canal, said he supported the applicant, agreeing that area parking was always impacted but that many of the operation's clients would be local residents.

Ryan Hyman, 5150 E. Pacific Coast Hwy., Prudential California Real Estate, said that the use would encourage job growth in the area.

John Molina, 5668 Naples Canal, noted that the applicant had a great track record for business success, and that the market, not parking issues or the Planning Commission, would drive success or failure.

Ben Knight, appellant, reiterated his claims that some of the conditions of approval would be difficult to enforce.

Carolyne Bihn noted changes to conditions regarding the total number of personnel, and adding a condition requiring a permanent sign be posted advising clients not to park in the private lot to the south.

Commissioner Stuhlbarg moved to sustain the decision of the Zoning Administrator to grant the Local Coastal Development Permit and Administrative Use Permit allowing a personal training studio with spa, massage and cosmetic care, and to deny the appeal, with amended conditions of approval as per staff. Commissioner Winn seconded the motion, which passed 6-0. Commissioner Gentile was absent.

5. Case No. 0504-01, ND 31-05, Site Plan Review, Subdivision Map, Standards Variance

Applicant: Warren Hughes, Hughes Development Inc. Subject Site: 1500 Pine Avenue (Council District 1) Description: Request for approval of a Site Plan Review and Tentative Tract map for a two-story 22-unit condominium complex (includes a density bonus for two very-low income units) and a Standards Variance to allow vehicle access from Pine Avenue instead of limiting vehicle access to the alley.

Carolyne Bihn presented the staff report recommending approval of the requests since the proposal was consistent with City regulations and zoning, and would provide increased home ownership opportunities while positive findings could be made to grant the Standards Variance request given the site's topography.

In response to a query from Commissioners Greenberg and Sramek, Patrick Ure, Housing Bureau representative, explained that low income residents would pay the same association dues as market-rate occupants with the cost factored in when they were qualified to buy, but that there was no way to predict or control special association assessments that might arise later on.

Warren Hughes, applicant, Hughes Development, 200 S. Pacific Coast Hwy., added that some units were designated for low-income residents, and that they agreed with all the conditions of approval.

Ms. Bihn noted modifications to the language of Condition 19 regarding the deed restriction for low-income units, and applicant Hughes accepted the amendment.

Commissioner Sramek moved to certify Negative Declaration No. 31-05 and to approve the Site Plan Review, Tentative Tract Map and Standards Variance, subject to amended conditions.

Commissioner Winn seconded the motion, which passed 6-0. Commissioner Gentile was absent.

6. Case No. 0512-32, ND 16-03, Modification to an Approved Permit

Applicant: Steven Clark, James Ratkovich & Associates Subject Site: 100 East Ocean Blvd. & 207 Seaside Way

(Council District 2)

Description: Request to modify an approved permit (Case No. 0210-04 Vesting Tentative Tract Map, Site Plan Review, Local Coastal Development Permit and Standards Variance) for construction of a 23-level high rise residential building (19 stories over four levels of parking) with 155 residential condominium units and ground floor commercial uses. This development includes an off-site parking garage to be located at 207 Seaside Way. The proposed modifications include changes to the exterior building design, an additional level of underground parking, an increase in lot coverage, a change to the Victory Park improvements and a new request for reduced corner cutoff at the driveway entrances.

Lynette Ferenczy presented the staff report recommending approval of the modification since the proposed changes would improve the project by increasing the parking and assuring the overall design is attractive and sensitive to surrounding properties while remaining consistent with the intent of PD-6.

Steven Clark, 2 North Lake Avenue Suite 230, Pasadena, applicant, explained that they had made arrangements to use an adjacent site for construction staging.

Charles Rosenson, 210 E. Ocean, Breakers representative, expressed concerns about the lack of parking and unaffordability of rental spaces in the new garage for Breakers residents. Mr. Rosenson also noted that in the short term, residents would be negatively affected by construction impacts, and in the long term, they would suffer from view and light blockage. He then asked for a deed restriction on the 207 Seaside parking structure to disallow construction of condominiums on top.

Chris Autry, P. O. Box 20378, Long Beach, East Village Association, asked why the condition related public art had been removed, and Ms. Ferenczy explained that it was determined that this project is exempt as it is not financially assisted by the Redevelopment Agency.

Commissioner Greenberg suggested that the applicant continue to meet with interested parties to work out compromises on sensitive issues.

Commissioner Winn said he thought this was a quality project that would have a positive economic impact on the City.

Commissioner Greenberg then moved to approve the modification request, subject to the revised conditions. Commissioner Winn seconded the motion, which passed 6-0. Commissioner Gentile was absent.

MATTERS FROM THE AUDIENCE

There were no matters from the audience.

MATTERS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING

Greg Carpenter noted that 2006 training objectives included a discussion on how State law affected affordable housing requirements, and he asked for the Commission's input.

Angela Reynolds added that staff was researching the long-term effect of condominium conversion and how to streamline the process.

Suzanne Frick stated that a citation administration penalty process now in place would be a new, effective tool and soon allow staff to do proactive monitoring of conditions of approval.

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Chairman Jenkins suggested looking into the impact of errors on the City's revenue tax base.

Commissioner Sramek suggested a study session to gain more insight into check cashing and payroll advance operations.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 4:43pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Marcia Gold Minutes Clerk